

Rolleston on Dove Parish Council

Clerk: Mrs Mary Danby 32 Hillcrest Rise BURNTWOOD WS7 4SH

Mobile: 07400 280561 (Office hours) Email: rollestonpc@outlook.com https://rollestonondovepc.co.uk

Our Ref: MD 29 April 2021

To: All Members of the Parish Council

Dear Councillor

You are hereby summoned to attend the Annual Meeting of the Parish Council on **Wednesday 05 May 2021** commencing at 7.30pm at which the business set out below will be transacted.

This meeting is permissible under the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 ("the 2020 Regulations") which came into force on 04 April 2020 in response to the COVID-19 outbreak. The 2020 Regulations enable local councils to hold remote meetings (including any by video and telephone conferencing) for a specified period until 06 May 2021.

Yours sincerely

MDanby

Mary Danby Clerk

PUBLIC FORUM

Members of the public may join the meeting and participate in the Public Forum by using Zoom: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89964433994?pwd=nun0vwp1nk5uvhlqs3lkekyyyuvsdz09
Meeting ID: 899 6443 3994 Passcode: 477671

A maximum of 15 minutes will be allocated prior to the commencement of the meeting when members of the public may put questions/comments on any matter in relation to which the Parish Council has powers or duties which affect the area. If you prefer, queries or comments may be emailed to the Parish Clerk (rollestonpc@outlook.com) no later than 4pm on Tuesday 04 May 2021 for consideration by the parish council.

- 1. Election of Chair
- 2. Election of Vice-Chair
- 3. Apologies for absence
- 4. Declarations of Interests and Dispensations

5. Appointment of Committees, Sub-Committees and Working Groups

Committee / Sub-Committee / Working Group	Current Membership
Contracts Working Group	Cllrs Badcock, Gooding, Sanderson, Stewart + 1 vacancy
s106 Working Group	Cllrs Badcock, Houston, E McManus, S McManus, Robson,
	Stewart

6. Appointment of representatives on Outside Bodies

Outside Body	Current Representative(s)
RoDSEC	Cllr B Toon
Rolleston Almshouse Trust	Cllrs Robson and Sanderson
Rolleston United Foundation	Cllr B Toon

7. Planning matters

7.1 Planning applications

Application No.	Location	Proposal
P/2021/00280	3 Hall Road	Erection of a single storey rear extension
P/2021/00422	Lane End Farm	Change of Use of mixed ancillary residential accommodation and office accommodation to ancillary residential accommodation only

7.2 Planning decisions

Application No.	Address	Proposal				
P/2021/00202	extension, erection of a porch to the front ele erection of a dormer to the side elevation to f loft conversion and installation of roof lights					
Permitted						
P/2021/00362	St Marys Church Church Road	Crown reduction of 1 multi-stemmed Sycamore tree by 30% - 3m (T4)				
The LPA has no objection to the work and does not propose to make a TPO in this instance						

- 8. To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 22 April 2021 (ENCLOSURE 1 to follow)
- 9. Matters arising from the previous meeting
- 10. County Councillor's report
- 11. Borough Councillor's report
- 12. Parish Councillors' reports
- 13. Internal Audit Report for the year ended 31 March 2021 (ENCLOSURE 2 to follow)
- 14. Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2020/21 (ENCLOSURE 3 to follow)
- 15. Financial matters

15.1 Schedule of payments as at 28 April 2021

Payee	Description	Payment Method	Gross £	VAT £
Ricoh UK Ltd	Photocopier:	BACS	226.44	37.74
	Copy charges (Dec-Mar incl) £113.03 Rental (1st quarter) £113.41			
P Gould	Mowing contract	BACS	1,127.33	0.00
1&1 IONOS Ltd	RPC website	DD	5.99	1.00
Freeola	Village website	DD	13.86	2.31
SPCA	Training fee (1 No. delegate)	BACS	30.00	0.00
C Stewart	Reimbursement re Zoom Pro monthly	BACS	14.39	2.40
Clerk	Salary and expenses	BACS	1,657.68	0.34
		TOTALS	3,075.69	43.79

15.2 Bank reconciliation as at 28 April 2021

		Bank Accounts			
		Treasurer	Instant Access	Total	
		£	£	£	
01 April 2021	Bank Statement	12,875.04	61,700.80	74,575.84	
	PLUS	210.00	901.98	1,111.98	
Mayamant in fundate data	Income				
Movement in funds to date	LESS	7 251 22	7 351 33	7 254 22	
	Expenditure	7,351.23	0.00	7,351.23	
28 April 2021	Bank Statement	5,733.81	62,602.78	68,336.59	

16. Rolleston Scouts: Buy a brick

Rolleston Scouts are in the middle of a building project to expand the capacity of the HQ building to welcome new members to Beavers, Cubs and Scouts. People can get involved and leave their permanent mark on the new build through a 'Buy a Brick' fundraising initiative.

The council has been asked to consider buying a brick:

- 2 line brick can be bought for a minimum £50 donation
- 4 line brick can be bought for a minimum £100 donation
- 6 line brick can be bought for a minimum £150 donation

17. Review of policies

Standing Orders (ENCLOSURE 4A)

Minor amendments to cross references have been made throughout the document.

Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy (ENCLOSURE 4B)

No amendments are required.

Members and Officers Subsistence/Mileage 2021 (ENCLOSURE 4C)

No amendments are required.

Social Media and Electronic Communication Policy (ENCLOSURE 4D)

Clarification of items included on the council's website and Facebook page.

18. ESBC Consultation: Removal of Public Call Box

ESBC has received notification for a proposal by British Telecommunications Plc (BT) for the removal of the public call box outside the Post Office, Station Road, Rolleston (01283 812011 – there were an

average of four calls per month). BT posted a notice within the kiosk on 10 March 2021 stating that they were thinking about removing the payphone and giving a deadline for responses to be made to the Local Authority by 21 May 2021.

19. Draft Meeting Schedule 2021/22 (ENCLOSURE 5)

20. Correspondence

20.1 Staffordshire Parish Councils Association

The weekly Bulletins have been circulated to all councillors.

20.2 Communications Log

The Communications Log has been circulated to all councillors every week.

21. Exclusion of Press and Public

Chair to move:

That under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) Act 1960 (Section 2) (and as expended by Section 100 of the Local Government Act 1972), the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information.

22. Quotations (ENCLOSURE 6)

23. Andy Starbuck Commemorative Seat (Minute Nos. 106.10. 158, 218 and 244 refer)

ROLLESTON ON DOVE PARISH COUNCIL

STANDING ORDERS

Adopted 11 March 2019

(Revised 11 May 202005 May 2021)

ADOPTED 11 MARCH 2019, REVISED <u>11 MAY 2020</u>05 MAY 2021

CONTENTS

		PAGE NO.
	INTRODUCTION	3
1	RULES OF DEBATE AT MEETINGS	4
2	DISORDERLY CONDUCT AT MEETINGS	4
3	MEETINGS GENERALLY	6
4	COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES	8
5	ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETINGS	9
6	EXTRAORDINARY MEETINGS OF THE COUNCIL, COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES	10
7	PUBLIC FORUM	10
8	PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS	11
9	PREVIOUS RESOLUTIONS	11
10	VOTING OF APPOINTMENTS	11
11	MOTIONS FOR A MEETING THAT REQUIRE WRITTEN NOTICE TO BE GIVEN TO THE PROPER OFFICER	11
12	MOTIONS AT A MEETING THAT DO NOT REQUIRE WRITTEN NOTICE	12
13	MANAGEMENT OF INFORMATION	12
14	DRAFT MINUTES	13
15	CODE OF CONDUCT AND DISPENSATIONS	13
16	CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS	14
17	PROPER OFFICER	15
18	DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY	16
19	RESPONSIBLE FINANCE OFFICER	16
20	ACCOUNTS AND ACCOUNTING STATEMENTS	16
21	FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND PROCUREMENT	17
22	HANDLING STAFF MATTERS	18
23	RESPONSIBILITIES TO PROVIDE INFORMATION	19
24	RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER DATA PROTECTION LEGISLATION	19
25	RELATIONS WITH THE PRESS/MEDIA	19
26	EXECUTION AND SEALING OF LEGAL DEEDS	19
27	COMMUNICATING WITH BOROUGH AND COUNTY COUNCILLORS	20
28	RESTRICTIONS ON COUNCILLOR ACTIVITIES	20
29	YOUTH REPRESENTATIVES AT PARISH COUNCIL MEETINGS	20
30	STANDING ORDERS GENERALLY	20

INTRODUCTION

These model standing orders update the National Association of Local Council (NALC) model standing orders contained in "Local Councils Explained" by Meera Tharmarajah (© 2013 NALC). This publication contains new model standing orders which reference new legislation introduced after 2013 when the last model standing orders were published.

HOW TO USE MODEL STANDING ORDERS

Standing orders are the written rules of a local council. Standing orders are essential to regulate the proceedings of a meeting. A council may also use standing orders to confirm or refer to various internal organisational and administrative arrangements. The standing orders of a council are not the same as the policies of a council but standing orders may refer to them.

Local councils operate within a wide statutory framework. NALC model standing orders incorporate and reference many statutory requirements to which councils are subject. It is not possible for the model standing orders to contain or reference all the statutory or legal requirements which apply to local councils. For example, it is not practical for model standing orders to document all obligations under data protection legislation. The statutory requirements to which a council is subject apply whether or not they are incorporated in a council's standing orders.

The model standing orders do not include model financial regulations. Financial regulations are standing orders to regulate and control the financial affairs and accounting procedures of a local council. The financial regulations, as opposed to the standing orders of a council, include most of the requirements relevant to the council's Responsible Financial Officer. Model financial regulations are available to councils in membership of NALC.

DRAFTING NOTES

Model standing orders that are in **bold** type contain legal and statutory requirements. It is recommended that councils adopt them without changing them or their meaning. Model standing orders not in bold are designed to help councils operate effectively but they do not contain statutory requirements so they may be adopted as drafted or amended to suit a council's needs. It is NALC's view that all model standing orders will generally be suitable for councils.

For convenience, the word "councillor" is used in model standing orders and, unless the context suggests otherwise, includes a non-councillor with or without voting rights.

A model standing order that includes brackets like this '()' requires information to be inserted by a council. A model standing order that includes brackets like this '[]' and the term 'OR' provides alternative options for a council to choose from when determining standing orders.

1. RULES OF DEBATE AT MEETINGS

- a Motions on the agenda shall be considered in the order that they appear unless the order is changed at the discretion of the chairman of the meeting.
- b A motion (including an amendment) shall not be progressed unless it has been moved and seconded.
- c A motion on the agenda that is not moved by its proposer may be treated by the chairman of the meeting as withdrawn.
- d If a motion (including an amendment) has been seconded, it may be withdrawn by the proposer only with the consent of the seconder and the meeting.
- e An amendment is a proposal to remove or add words to a motion. It shall not negate the motion.
- If an amendment to the original motion is carried, the original motion (as amended) becomes the substantive motion upon which further amendment(s) may be moved.
- g An amendment shall not be considered unless early verbal notice of it is given at the meeting and, if requested by the chairman of the meeting, is expressed in writing to the chairman.
- h A councillor may move an amendment to his own motion if agreed by the meeting. If a motion has already been seconded, the amendment shall be with the consent of the seconder and the meeting.
- If there is more than one amendment to an original or substantive motion, the amendments shall be moved in the order directed by the chairman of the meeting.
- j Subject to standing order 1(k), only one amendment shall be moved and debated at a time, the order of which shall be directed by the chairman of the meeting.
- k One or more amendments may be discussed together if the chairman of the meeting considers this expedient but each amendment shall be voted upon separately.
- A councillor may not move more than one amendment to an original or substantive motion.
- m The mover of an amendment has no right of reply at the end of debate on it.
- n Where a series of amendments to an original motion are carried, the mover of the original motion shall have a right of reply either at the end of debate on the first amendment or at the very end of debate on the final substantive motion immediately before it is put to the vote.
- o Unless permitted by the chairman of the meeting, a councillor may speak once in the debate on a motion except:
 - i. to speak on an amendment moved by another councillor;

- ii. to move or speak on another amendment if the motion has been amended since he last spoke;
- iii. to make a point of order;
- iv. to give a personal explanation; or
- v. to exercise a right of reply.
- During the debate on a motion, a councillor may interrupt only on a point of order or a personal explanation and the councillor who was interrupted shall stop speaking. A councillor raising a point of order shall identify the standing order which he considers has been breached or specify the other irregularity in the proceedings of the meeting he is concerned by.
- q A point of order shall be decided by the chairman of the meeting and his decision shall be final.
- r When a motion is under debate, no other motion shall be moved except:
 - i. to amend the motion;
 - ii. to proceed to the next business;
 - iii. to adjourn the debate;
 - iv. to put the motion to a vote;
 - v. to ask a person to be no longer heard or to leave the meeting;
 - vi. to refer a motion to a committee or sub-committee for consideration;
 - vii. to exclude the public and press;
 - viii. to adjourn the meeting; or
 - ix. to suspend particular standing order(s) excepting those which reflect mandatory statutory or legal requirements.
- s Before an original or substantive motion is put to the vote, the chairman of the meeting shall be satisfied that the motion has been sufficiently debated and that the mover of the motion under debate has exercised or waived his right of reply.
- t Excluding motions moved under standing order 1(r), the contributions or speeches by a councillor shall relate only to the motion under discussion and shall not exceed five minutes without the consent of the chairman of the meeting.

2. DISORDERLY CONDUCT AT MEETINGS

- a No person shall obstruct the transaction of business at a meeting or behave offensively or improperly. If this standing order is ignored, the chairman of the meeting shall request such person(s) to moderate or improve their conduct.
- b If person(s) disregard the request of the chairman of the meeting to moderate or improve their conduct, any councillor or the chairman of the meeting may move that the person be no longer heard or be excluded from the meeting. The motion, if seconded, shall be put to the vote without discussion.
- c If a resolution made under standing order 2(b) is ignored, the chairman of the meeting may take further reasonable steps to restore order or to progress the meeting. This may include temporarily suspending or closing the meeting.

3. MEETINGS GENERALLY

Full Council meetings
Committee meetings
Sub-committee meetings

- Meetings shall not take place in premises which at the time of the meeting are used for the supply of alcohol, unless no other premises are available free of charge or at a reasonable cost.
- b The minimum three clear days for notice of a meeting does not include the day on which notice was issued, the day of the meeting, a Sunday, a day of the Christmas break, a day of the Easter break or of a bank holiday or a day appointed for public thanksgiving or mourning.
- The minimum three clear days' public notice of a meeting does not include the day on which the notice was issued or the day of the meeting.
- Meetings shall be open to the public unless their presence is prejudicial to
 the public interest by reason of the confidential nature of the business to be
 transacted or for other special reasons. The public's exclusion from part or
 all of a meeting shall be by a resolution which shall give reasons for the
 public's exclusion.
 - e Members of the public may make representations, answer questions and give evidence at a meeting which they are entitled to attend in respect of the business on the agenda during the Public Forum or if they are invited to do so by the Chair.
 - f The period of time designated for public participation at a meeting in accordance with standing order 3(e) shall not exceed 15 minutes unless directed by the chairman of the meeting.
 - g Subject to standing order 3(f), a member of the public shall not speak for more than 5 minutes.
 - h In accordance with standing order 3(e), a question shall not require a response at the meeting nor start a debate on the question. The chairman of the meeting may direct that a written or oral response be given.
 - i A person who speaks at a meeting shall direct his comments to the chairman of the meeting.
 - j Only one person is permitted to speak at a time. If more than one person wants to speak, the chairman of the meeting shall direct the order of speaking.
- k Subject to standing order 3(m), a person who attends a meeting is permitted
 to report on the meeting whilst the meeting is open to the public. To
 "report" means to film, photograph, make an audio recording of meeting proceedings, use any other means for enabling persons not present to see or

hear the meeting as it takes place or later or to report or to provide oral or written commentary about the meeting so that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later to persons not present.

- A person present at a meeting may not provide an oral report or oral
 commentary about a meeting as it takes place without permission.
- m The press shall be provided with reasonable facilities for the taking of their
 report of all or part of a meeting at which they are entitled to be present.
- Subject to standing orders which indicate otherwise, anything authorised or required to be done by, to or before the Chairman of the Council may in his absence be done by, to or before the Vice-Chairman of the Council (if there is one).
- The Chairman of the Council, if present, shall preside at a meeting. If the
 Chairman is absent from a meeting, the Vice-Chairman of the Council (if
 there is one) if present, shall preside. If both the Chairman and the ViceChairman are absent from a meeting, a councillor as chosen by the
 councillors present at the meeting shall preside at the meeting.
- p Subject to a meeting being quorate, all questions at a meeting shall be
 decided by a majority of the councillors and non-councillors with voting
 rights present and voting.
- q The chairman of a meeting may give an original vote on any matter put to
 the vote, and in the case of an equality of votes may exercise his casting
 vote whether or not he gave an original vote.
 See standing orders 5(h) and (i) for the different rules that apply in the election of the Chairman of the Council at the annual meeting of the Council.
- Unless standing orders provide otherwise, voting on a question shall be by a show of hands. At the request of a councillor, the voting on any question shall be recorded so as to show whether each councillor present and voting gave his vote for or against that question. Such a request shall be made before moving on to the next item of business on the agenda.
 - s The minutes of a meeting shall include an accurate record of the following:
 - i. the time and place of the meeting;
 - ii. the names of councillors who are present and the names of councillors who are absent;
 - iii. interests that have been declared by councillors and non-councillors with voting rights;
 - iv. the grant of dispensations (if any) to councillors and non-councillors with voting rights;
 - v. whether a councillor or non-councillor with voting rights left the meeting when matters that they held interests in were being considered;
 - vi. if there was a public participation session; and
 - vii. the resolutions made.

- t A councillor or a non-councillor with voting rights who has a disclosable
- pecuniary interest or another interest as set out in the Council's code of
- conduct in a matter being considered at a meeting is subject to statutory limitations or restrictions under the code on his right to participate and vote on that matter.
- u No business may be transacted at a meeting unless at least one-third of the whole number of members of the Council are present and in no case shall the quorum of a meeting be less than three.
 See standing order 4d(viii) for the quorum of a committee or sub-committee meeting.
- v If a meeting is or becomes inquorate no business shall be transacted and the
- meeting shall be closed. The business on the agenda for the meeting shall be
- adjourned to another meeting.

4. COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES

- a Unless the Council determines otherwise, a committee may appoint a sub-committee whose terms of reference and members shall be determined by the committee.
- b The members of a committee may include non-councillors unless it is a committee which regulates and controls the finances of the Council.
- c Unless the Council determines otherwise, all the members of an advisory committee and a sub-committee of the advisory committee may be non-councillors.
- d The Council may appoint standing committees or other committees as may be necessary, and:
 - i. shall determine their terms of reference;
 - ii. shall determine the number and time of the ordinary meetings of a standing committee up until the date of the next annual meeting of the Council;
 - iii. shall permit a committee, other than in respect of the ordinary meetings of a committee, to determine the number and time of its meetings;
 - iv. shall, subject to standing orders 4(b) and (c), appoint and determine the terms of office of members of such a committee;
 - v. may, subject to standing orders 4(b) and (c), appoint and determine the terms of office of the substitute members to a committee whose role is to replace the ordinary members at a meeting of a committee if the ordinary members of the committee confirm to the Proper Officer two days before the meeting that they are unable to attend:
 - vi. shall, after it has appointed the members of a standing committee, appoint the chairman of the standing committee;
 - vii. shall permit a committee other than a standing committee, to appoint its own chairman at the first meeting of the committee;
 - viii. shall determine the place, notice requirements and quorum for a meeting of a committee and a sub-committee which, in both cases, shall be no less than three;
 - ix. shall determine if the public may participate at a meeting of a committee;
 - x. shall determine if the public and press are permitted to attend the meetings of a

- sub-committee and also the advance public notice requirements, if any, required for the meetings of a sub-committee;
- xi. shall determine if the public may participate at a meeting of a sub-committee that they are permitted to attend; and
- xii. may dissolve a committee or a sub-committee.

5. ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETINGS

- a In an election year, the annual meeting of the Council shall be held on or within 14 days following the day on which the councillors elected take office.
- b In a year which is not an election year, the annual meeting of the Council shall be held on such day in May as the Council decides.
- c If no other time is fixed, the annual meeting of the Council shall take place at 6pm.
- d In addition to the annual meeting of the Council, at least three other ordinary meetings shall be held in each year on such dates and times as the Council decides.
- e The first business conducted at the annual meeting of the Council shall be the election of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman (if there is one) of the Council.
- f The Chairman of the Council, unless he has resigned or becomes disqualified, shall continue in office and preside at the annual meeting until his successor is elected at the next annual meeting of the Council.
- g The Vice-Chairman of the Council, if there is one, unless he resigns or becomes disqualified, shall hold office until immediately after the election of the Chairman of the Council at the next annual meeting of the Council.
- In an election year, if the current Chairman of the Council has not been re-elected as a member of the Council, he shall preside at the annual meeting until a successor Chairman of the Council has been elected. The current Chairman of the Council shall not have an original vote in respect of the election of the new Chairman of the Council but shall give a casting vote in the case of an equality of votes.
- In an election year, if the current Chairman of the Council has been re-elected as a member of the Council, he shall preside at the annual meeting until a new Chairman of the Council has been elected. He may exercise an original vote in respect of the election of the new Chairman of the Council and shall give a casting vote in the case of an equality of votes.
- Following the election of the Chairman of the Council and Vice-Chairman (if there is one) of the Council at the annual meeting, the business shall include:
 - In an election year, delivery by the Chairman of the Council and councillors of their acceptance of office forms unless the Council resolves for this to be done at a later date. In a year which is not an election year, delivery by the Chairman of the Council of his acceptance of office form unless the Council resolves for this to be done at a later date;
 - ii. Confirmation of the accuracy of the minutes of the last meeting of the Council;

- iii. Receipt of the minutes of the last meeting of a committee;
- iv. Consideration of the recommendations made by a committee;
- v. Review of delegation arrangements to committees, sub-committees, staff and other local authorities;
- vi. Review of the terms of reference for committees:
- vii. Appointment of members to existing committees;
- viii. Appointment of any new committees in accordance with standing order 4;
- ix. Review of arrangements (including legal agreements) with other local authorities, not-for-profit bodies and businesses.
- x. Review of representation on or work with external bodies and arrangements for reporting back;
- xi. In an election year, to make arrangements with a view to the Council becoming eligible to exercise the general power of competence in the future;
- xii. Determining the time and place of ordinary meetings of the Council up to and including the next annual meeting of the Council.

6. EXTRAORDINARY MEETINGS OF THE COUNCIL, COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES

- a The Chairman of the Council may convene an extraordinary meeting of the Council at any time.
- b If the Chairman of the Council does not call an extraordinary meeting of the Council within seven days of having been requested in writing to do so by two councillors, any two councillors may convene an extraordinary meeting of the Council. The public notice giving the time, place and agenda for such a meeting shall be signed by the two councillors.
- c The chairman of a committee may convene an extraordinary meeting of the committee at any time.
- d If the chairman of a committee does not call an extraordinary meeting within seven days of having been requested to do so by two members of the committee, any two members of the committee may convene an extraordinary meeting of the committee.

7. PUBLIC FORUM

See also standing orders 3(e)-3(j).

- a A person being a registered local government elector within the parish of Rolleston on Dove may at the appointed time during an ordinary meeting of the Parish Council ask a question about any matter on which the Parish Council has power.
- b Each question shall be directed to the Chairman of the meeting who may answer orally, may undertake to provide a written reply within seven days or may decline to answer.
- c Public Question time shall be limited so that no further question shall be put after 15 minutes from the commencement of the first question.
- d Members of the public will not be permitted to speak during the business part of the meeting unless invited to do so by the Chair.

8. PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS

- a A person being a registered local government elector within the Parish of Rolleston on Dove may at the appointed time during an ordinary meeting of the Parish council present a petition of at least 10 signatures of local government electors living within the parish about any question on which the Parish Council has power. The petitioner may speak for two minutes.
- b Each petition shall be handed to the Chairman of the meeting who may answer orally, provide a written reply within seven days, and decline to answer or defer discussion until the next meeting of the Council.
- c A maximum of five petitions may be presented at any meeting of the Parish.

9. PREVIOUS RESOLUTIONS

- a A resolution shall not be reversed within six months except either by a special motion, which requires written notice by at least three councillors to be given to the Proper Officer in accordance with standing order 30(b), or by a motion moved in pursuance of the recommendation of a committee or a sub-committee.
- b When a motion moved pursuant to standing order 9(a) has been disposed of, no similar motion may be moved for a further six months.

10. VOTING ON APPOINTMENTS

a Where more than two persons have been nominated for a position to be filled by the Council and none of those persons has received an absolute majority of votes in their favour, the name of the person having the least number of votes shall be struck off the list and a fresh vote taken. This process shall continue until a majority of votes is given in favour of one person. A tie in votes may be settled by the casting vote exercisable by the chairman of the meeting.

11. MOTIONS FOR A MEETING THAT REQUIRE WRITTEN NOTICE TO BE GIVEN TO THE PROPER OFFICER

- a A motion shall relate to the responsibilities of the meeting for which it is tabled and in any event shall relate to the performance of the Council's statutory functions, powers and obligations or an issue which specifically affects the Council's area or its residents.
- b No motion may be moved at a meeting unless it is on the agenda and the mover has given written notice of its wording to the Proper Officer at least seven clear days before the meeting. Clear days do not include the day of the notice or the day of the meeting.
- c The Proper Officer may, before including a motion on the agenda received in accordance with standing order 9(a), correct obvious grammatical or typographical errors in the wording of the motion.
- d If the Proper Officer considers the wording of a motion received in accordance with standing order 9(a) is not clear in meaning, the motion shall be rejected until the mover of the motion resubmits it, so that it can be understood, in writing, to the Proper Officer at least four clear days before the meeting.

- e If the wording or subject of a proposed motion is considered improper, the Proper Officer shall consult with the chairman of the forthcoming meeting or, as the case may be, the councillors who have convened the meeting, to consider whether the motion shall be included in the agenda or rejected.
- The decision of the Proper Officer as to whether or not to include the motion on the agenda shall be final.
- g Motions received shall be recorded and numbered in the order that they are received.
- h Motions rejected shall be recorded with an explanation by the Proper Officer of the reason for rejection.

12. MOTIONS AT A MEETING THAT DO NOT REQUIRE WRITTEN NOTICE

- a The following motions may be moved at a meeting without written notice to the Proper Officer:
 - i. to correct an inaccuracy in the draft minutes of a meeting;
 - ii. to move to a vote;
 - iii. to defer consideration of a motion;
 - iv. to refer a motion to a particular committee or sub-committee;
 - v. to appoint a person to preside at a meeting;
 - vi. to change the order of business on the agenda;
 - vii. to proceed to the next business on the agenda;
 - viii. to require a written report;
 - ix. to appoint a committee or sub-committee and their members;
 - x. to extend the time limits for speaking;
 - xi. to exclude the press and public from a meeting in respect of confidential or other information which is prejudicial to the public interest;
 - xii. to not hear further from a councillor or a member of the public;
 - xiii. to exclude a councillor or member of the public for disorderly conduct;
 - xiv. to temporarily suspend the meeting;
 - xv. to suspend a particular standing order (unless it reflects mandatory statutory or legal requirements);
 - xvi. to adjourn the meeting; or
 - xvii. to close the meeting.

13. MANAGEMENT OF INFORMATION

See also standing order 20.

- a The Council shall have in place and keep under review, technical and organisational measures to keep secure information (including personal data) which it holds in paper and electronic form. Such arrangements shall include deciding who has access to personal data and encryption of personal data.
- The Council shall have in place, and keep under review, policies for the retention and safe destruction of all information (including personal data) which it holds in paper and electronic form. The Council's retention policy shall confirm the period for which information (including personal data) shall be retained or if this is not possible the criteria used to determine that period (e.g. the Limitation Act 1980).

- c The agenda, papers that support the agenda and the minutes of a meeting shall not disclose or otherwise undermine confidential information or personal data without legal justification.
- d Councillors, staff, the Council's contractors and agents shall not disclose confidential information or personal data without legal justification.

14. DRAFT MINUTES

Full Council meetings
Committee meetings
Sub-committee meetings

- a If the draft minutes of a preceding meeting have been served on councillors with the agenda to attend the meeting at which they are due to be approved for accuracy, they shall be taken as read.
- b There shall be no discussion about the draft minutes of a preceding meeting except in relation to their accuracy. A motion to correct an inaccuracy in the draft minutes shall be moved in accordance with standing order 10(a)(i).12(a)(i).
- c The accuracy of draft minutes, including any amendment(s) made to them, shall be confirmed by resolution and shall be signed by the chairman of the meeting and stand as an accurate record of the meeting to which the minutes relate.
- d If the chairman of the meeting does not consider the minutes to be an accurate record of the meeting to which they relate, he shall sign the minutes and include a paragraph in the following terms or to the same effect:

"The chairman of this meeting does not believe that the minutes of the meeting of the () held on [date] in respect of () were a correct record but his view was not upheld by the meeting and the minutes are confirmed as an accurate record of the proceedings."

- e If the Council's gross annual income or expenditure (whichever is higher) does not exceed £25,000, it shall publish draft minutes on a website which is publicly accessible and free of charge not later than one month after the meeting has taken place.
- f Subject to the publication of draft minutes in accordance with standing order 12(e)14(e) and standing order 20(a) and following a resolution which confirms the accuracy of the minutes of a meeting, the draft minutes or recordings of the meeting for which approved minutes exist shall be destroyed.

15. CODE OF CONDUCT AND DISPENSATIONS

See also standing order 3(u).

a All councillors and non-councillors with voting rights shall observe the code of conduct adopted by the Council.

- b Unless he has been granted a dispensation, a councillor or non-councillor with voting rights shall withdraw from a meeting when it is considering a matter in which he has a disclosable pecuniary interest. He may return to the meeting after it has considered the matter in which he had the interest.
- c Unless he has been granted a dispensation, a councillor or non-councillor with voting rights shall withdraw from a meeting when it is considering a matter in which he has another interest if so required by the Council's code of conduct. He may return to the meeting after it has considered the matter in which he had the interest.
- d **Dispensation requests shall be in writing and submitted to the Proper Officer** as soon as possible before the meeting, or failing that, at the start of the meeting for which the dispensation is required.
- e A decision as to whether to grant a dispensation shall be made by a meeting of the council or committee for which the dispensation is required and that decision is final.
- f A dispensation request shall confirm:
 - i. the description and the nature of the disclosable pecuniary interest or other interest to which the request for the dispensation relates;
 - ii. whether the dispensation is required to participate at a meeting in a discussion only or a discussion and a vote;
 - iii. the date of the meeting or the period (not exceeding four years) for which the dispensation is sought; and
 - iv. an explanation as to why the dispensation is sought.
- g Subject to standing orders 135(d) and (f), a dispensation request shall be considered at the beginning of the meeting of the council, or committee or sub-committee for which the dispensation is required.
- h A dispensation may be granted in accordance with standing order 135(e) if having regard to all relevant circumstances any of the following apply:
 - without the dispensation the number of persons prohibited from participating in the particular business would be so great a proportion of the meeting transacting the business as to impede the transaction of the business;
 - ii. granting the dispensation is in the interests of persons living in the council's area;
 - iii. it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation.

16. CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS

- a Upon notification by the District or Unitary Council that it is dealing with a complaint that a councillor or non-councillor with voting rights has breached the council's code of conduct, the Proper Officer shall, subject to standing order 11, report this to the council.
- b Where the notification in standing order 146(a) relates to a complaint made by the Proper Officer, the Proper Officer shall notify the Chairman of Council of this fact, and the Chairman shall nominate another staff member to assume the duties of the Proper

Officer in relation to the complaint until it has been determined and the council has agreed what action, if any, to take in accordance with standing order $14\underline{6}(d)$.

- c The council may:
 - i. provide information or evidence where such disclosure is necessary to investigate the complaint or is a legal requirement;
 - ii. seek information relevant to the complaint from the person or body with statutory responsibility for investigation of the matter;
- d Upon notification by the District or Unitary Council that a councillor or non-councillor with voting rights has breached the council's code of conduct, the council shall consider what, if any, action to take against him. Such action excludes disqualification or suspension from office.

17. PROPER OFFICER

- a The Proper Officer shall be the clerk or (ii) an elected member(s) nominated by the council to undertake the work of the Proper Officer when the Proper Officer is absent.
- b The Proper Officer shall:
 - i. at least three clear days before a meeting of the council, a committee or a subcommittee.
 - serve on councillors by delivery or post at their residences or by email authenticated in such manner as the Proper Officer thinks fit, a signed summons confirming the time, place and the agenda (provided the councillor has consented to service by email), and
 - Provide, in a conspicuous place, public notice of the time, place and agenda (provided that the public notice with agenda of an extraordinary meeting of the council convened by councillors is signed by them).

See standing order 3(b) for the meaning of clear days for a meeting of a full council and standing order 3(c) for the meaning of clear days for a meeting of a committee;

- ii. subject to standing order 911, include on the agenda all motions in the order received unless a councillor has given written notice at least four days before the meeting confirming his withdrawal of it;
- iii. convene a meeting of the council for the election of a new Chairman of the Council, occasioned by a casual vacancy in his office;
- iv. facilitate inspection of the minute book by local government electors;
- v. receive and retain copies of byelaws made by other local authorities;
- vi. hold acceptance of office forms from councillors;
- vii. ensure that every councillor's register of interests is supplied to the Borough Council;
- viii. assist with responding to requests made under freedom of information legislation and rights exercisable under data protection legislation, in accordance with the council's relevant policies and procedures;
- ix. liaise, as appropriate, with the council's Data Protection Officer (where one has been appointed);
- x. receive and send general correspondence and notices on behalf of the council except where there is a resolution to the contrary;

- xi. assist in the organisation of, storage of, access to, security of and destruction of information held by the council in paper and electronic form subject to the requirements of data protection and freedom of information legislation and other legitimate requirements (e.g. the Limitation Act 1980);
- xii. arrange for legal deeds to be executed; (see also standing order 263);
- xiii. arrange or manage the prompt authorisation, approval, and instruction regarding any payments to be made by the council in accordance with its financial regulations;
- xiv. record every planning application notified to the council and the council's response to the local planning authority in a book for such purpose;
- xv. refer a planning application received by the council to the council within three working days of receipt to facilitate an extraordinary meeting if the nature of a planning application requires consideration before the next ordinary meeting of the council;
- xvi. manage access to information about the council via the publication scheme; and
- xvii. retain custody of the seal of the council (if there is one) which shall not be used without a resolution to that effect. (see also standing order 2326).

18. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

The council will delegate authority to the Clerk in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair (or other councillors should one or the other be indisposed) to take any actions necessary with associated expenditure to protect the interests of the community and ensure council business continuity during the period of the COVID-19 outbreak, informed by consultation with members of the council. All decisions to be minuted appropriately. Delegated authority to cease upon the first face-to-face meeting of the council.

19. RESPONSIBLE FINANCIAL OFFICER

a The Clerk will act as the Responsible Financial Officer or be responsible for managing a Finance Officer or other employees of the council.

20. ACCOUNTS AND ACCOUNTING STATEMENTS

- a "Proper practices" in standing orders refer to the most recent version of "Governance and Accountability for Local Councils a Practitioners' Guide".
- b All payments by the council shall be authorised, approved and paid in accordance with the law, proper practices and the council's financial regulations.
- c The Responsible Financial Officer shall supply to each councillor at every meeting of the council a statement to summarise:
 - the council's receipts and payments (or income and expenditure) for each quarter;
 - ii. the council's aggregate receipts and payments (or income and expenditure) for the year to date;
 - iii. the balances held at the end of the quarter being reported and which includes a

ROLLESTON ON DOVE PARISH COUNCIL STANDING ORDERS

ADOPTED 11 MARCH 2019, REVISED <u>11 MAY 2020</u>05 MAY 2021

comparison with the budget for the financial year and highlights any actual or potential overspends.

d As soon as possible after the financial year end at 31 March, the Responsible Financial Officer shall provide:

- each councillor with a statement summarising the council's receipts and payments (or income and expenditure) for the last quarter and the year to date for information; and
- ii. to the council the accounting statements for the year in the form of Section 2 of the annual governance and accountability return, as required by proper practices, for consideration and approval.
- e The year-end accounting statements shall be prepared in accordance with proper practices and apply the form of accounts determined by the council (receipts and payments, or income and expenditure) for the year to 31 March. A completed draft annual governance and accountability return shall be presented to all councillors at least seven days prior to anticipated approval by the council. The annual governance and accountability return of the council, which is subject to external audit, including the annual governance statement, shall be presented to the council for consideration and formal approval before 30 June.

21. FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND PROCUREMENT

- a The council shall consider and approve financial regulations drawn up by the Responsible Financial Officer, which shall include detailed arrangements in respect of the following:
 - i. the keeping of accounting records and systems of internal controls;
 - ii. the assessment and management of financial risks faced by the council;
 - iii. the work of the independent internal auditor in accordance with proper practices and the receipt of regular reports from the internal auditor, which shall be required at least annually;
 - iv. the inspection and copying by councillors and local electors of the council's accounts and/or orders of payments; and
 - v. whether contracts with an estimated value below £25,000 due to special circumstances are exempt from a tendering process or procurement exercise.
- b Financial regulations shall be reviewed regularly and at least annually for fitness of purpose.
- C A public contract regulated by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 with an estimated value in excess of £25,000 but less than the relevant thresholds in standing order 1821(f) is subject to Regulations 109-114 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 which include a requirement on the council to advertise the contract opportunity on the Contracts Finder website (www.gov.uk/contracts-finder) regardless of what other means it uses to advertise the opportunity unless it proposes to use an existing list of suppliers (framework agreement).
- d Subject to additional requirements in the financial regulations of the council, the tender process for contracts for the supply of goods, materials, services or the execution of works shall include, as a minimum, the following steps:
 - i. a specification for the goods, materials, services or the execution of works shall be drawn up:
 - ii. an invitation to tender shall be drawn up to confirm (i) the council's specification (ii) the time, date and address for the submission of tenders (iii) the date of the

- council's written response to the tender and (iv) the prohibition on prospective contractors contacting councillors or staff to encourage or support their tender outside the prescribed process;
- iii. the invitation to tender shall be advertised in a local newspaper and in any other manner that is appropriate;
- iv. tenders are to be submitted in writing in a sealed marked envelope addressed to the Proper Officer;
- v. tenders shall be opened by the Proper Officer in the presence of at least one councillor after the deadline for submission of tenders has passed;
- vi. tenders are to be reported to and considered by the appropriate meeting of the council or a committee or sub-committee with delegated responsibility.
- e Neither the council, nor a committee or a sub-committee with delegated responsibility for considering tenders, is bound to accept the lowest value tender.
- f A public contract regulated by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 with an estimated value in excess of £181,302 for a public service or supply contract or in excess of £4,551,413 for a public works contract (or other thresholds determined by the European Commission every two years and published in the Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU)) shall comply with the relevant procurement procedures and other requirements in the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 which include advertising the contract opportunity on the Contracts Finder website and in OJEU.
- A public contract in connection with the supply of gas, heat, electricity, drinking water, transport services, or postal services to the public; or the provision of a port or airport; or the exploration for or extraction of gas, oil or solid fuel with an estimated value in excess of £363,424 for a supply, services or design contract; or in excess of £4,551,413 for a works contract; or £820,370 for a social and other specific services contract (or other thresholds determined by the European Commission every two years and published in OJEU) shall comply with the relevant procurement procedures and other requirements in the Utilities Contracts Regulations 2016.

22. HANDLING STAFF MATTERS

- a A matter personal to a member of staff that is being considered by a meeting of council OR the Finance committee is subject to standing order <u>4113</u>.
- b Subject to the council's policy regarding absences from work, the council's most senior member of staff shall notify the chairman of or, if he is not available, the vice-chairman (if there is one) of the council of absence occasioned by illness or other reason and that person shall report such absence to council at its next meeting.
- c The chairman of the council, or in his absence the vice-chairman, shall upon a resolution, conduct a review of the performance and annual appraisal of the work of the Clerk. The reviews and appraisal shall be reported in writing and are subject to approval by resolution by the council.
- Subject to the council's policy regarding the handling of grievance matters, the council's most senior member of staff (or other members of staff) shall contact the chairman of the council, or in his absence, the vice-chairman of council in respect of an informal or formal grievance matter, and this matter shall be reported back and progressed by

- resolution of council.
- e Subject to the council's policy regarding the handling of grievance matters, if an informal or formal grievance matter raised by the Clerk relates to the chairman or vice-chairman of the council, this shall be communicated to another member of the council, which shall be reported back and progressed by resolution of the council.
- f Any persons responsible for all or part of the management of staff shall treat as confidential the written records of all meetings relating to their performance, capabilities, grievance or disciplinary matters.
- In accordance with standing order $\frac{11}{13}$ (a), persons with line management responsibilities shall have access to staff records referred to in standing order $\frac{1921}{1921}$ (f).

23. RESPONSIBILITIES TO PROVIDE INFORMATION

See also standing order 21.

- a In accordance with freedom of information legislation, the council shall publish information in accordance with its publication scheme and respond to requests for information held by the council.
- b The council shall publish information in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Transparency Requirements) (England) Regulations 2015.

24. RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER DATA PROTECTION LEGISLATION

(Below is not an exclusive list)

See also standing order 1113.

- a The council may appoint a Data Protection Officer.
- b The council shall have policies and procedures in place to respond to an individual exercising statutory rights concerning his personal data.
- The council shall have a written policy in place for responding to and managing a personal data breach.
- d The council shall keep a record of all personal data breaches comprising the facts relating to the personal data breach, its effects and the remedial action taken.
- e The council shall ensure that information communicated in its privacy notice(s) is in an easily accessible and available form and kept up to date.
- f The council shall maintain a written record of its processing activities.

25. RELATIONS WITH THE PRESS/MEDIA

a Requests from the press or other media for an oral or written comment or statement from the council, its councillors or staff shall be handled in accordance with the council's policy in respect of dealing with the press and/or other media.

26. EXECUTION AND SEALING OF LEGAL DEEDS

See also standing orders 1817(b)(xii) and (xvii).

- a A legal deed shall not be executed on behalf of the council unless authorised by a resolution.
- b Subject to standing order 26(a), any two councillors may sign, on behalf of the council, any deed required by law and the Proper Officer shall witness their signatures.

 The above is applicable to a council without a common seal.

27. COMMUNICATING WITH BOROUGH AND COUNTY COUNCILLORS

a An invitation to attend a meeting of the council shall be sent, together with the agenda, to the ward councillor(s) of the Borough and County Council representing the area of the council.

28. RESTRICTIONS ON COUNCILLOR ACTIVITIES

a Unless duly authorised no councillor shall issue orders, instructions or directions.

29. YOUTH REPRESENTATIVES AT PARISH COUNCIL MEETINGS

- a The Parish Council shall have a maximum of two Youth Representatives. It will annually co-opt one Youth Representative who will then serve for a maximum period of two years.
- b The Youth Representatives must have their principal place of residence in the Parish of Rolleston on Dove at the time of co-option and throughout their period of office. If either of the Youth Representatives should change his/her place of residence to a location out of the Parish of Rolleston on Dove, he/she will be required to resign forthwith and the vacancy shall be filled by co-option at a subsequent Parish Council meeting.
- c Youth Representatives must be under 18 years old and over 14 years old at the time of co-option.
- d The Parish Council will advertise vacancies in the Rollestonian, the village website and on village notice boards. If no-one is forthcoming it will work in partnership with the principal High School serving the Parish of Rolleston on Dove in order to identify up to two Youth Representatives. In the event of more than two young people being interested, the Parish Council recommends that an election takes place within the School.
- e Youth Representatives will be invited to all meetings of the Parish Council but will have to leave when the Press and Public are excluded. They will have the right to place items on the Agenda, to speak on all items and to receive, in advance of meetings, Minutes and documents for all items. They will not have the right to vote.
- f A Youth Representative may be removed from office by a majority vote of the Council on a "resolution moved on notice" in accordance with Standing Order 9 and shall be subject to the Council's Standing Order 2 concerning "disorderly conduct".

30. STANDING ORDERS GENERALLY

a All or part of a standing order, except one that incorporates mandatory statutory or

ADOPTED 11 MARCH 2019, REVISED <u>11 MAY 202005 MAY 2021</u>

- legal requirements, may be suspended by resolution in relation to the consideration of an item on the agenda for a meeting.
- b A motion to add to or vary or revoke one or more of the council's standing orders, except one that incorporates mandatory statutory or legal requirements, shall be proposed by a special motion, the written notice by at least three councillors to be given to the Proper Officer in accordance with standing order 9.
- c The Proper Officer shall provide a copy of the council's standing orders to a councillor as soon as possible.
- d The decision of the chairman of a meeting as to the application of standing orders at the meeting shall be final.

DOCUMENT HISTORY

Detailed History of Changes

Rev.	Date	Description of Changes
No.		
1.0	11/03/2019	Original document adopted by the council
1.1	09/03/2020	Page 10, SO 7 Planning Applications: Consideration outside of normal meeting schedule removed and remaining SOs renumbered
1.2	11/05/2020	Addition of "Delegation of Authority" as SO 18, remaining SOs renumbered
1.3	05/05/2021	Minor amendments to correct cross references throughout the
		document.

ROLLESTON ON DOVE PARISH COUNCIL ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION POLICY

1. Statement of Intent

1.1 In carrying out its functions and responsibilities Rolleston on Dove Parish Council ("RPC") will promote a culture of honesty, openness and fairness and requires elected members and employees at all levels to conduct themselves in accordance with the principles contained in The Relevant Authorities (General Principles) Order 2001 throughout their term of office or employment with RPC. The principles contained in the Order are detailed in Appendix A.

Consequently, RPC recognises and accepts the need for an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy.

RPC will not tolerate fraud and corruption in the administration of its responsibilities and will deal equally with offenders whether from inside or outside RPC.

- 1.2 Fraud and corruption are defined as follows:
 - Fraud is the intentional distortion of financial statements, accounts or other records by persons internal or external to the authority which is carried out to conceal the misappropriation of assets or otherwise for gain or to mislead or misrepresent.
 - Corruption is the offering, giving, soliciting or acceptance of an inducement or reward which may influence the action of any person to act against the interests of an organisation.

In addition, corruption is hereby defined to also include the deliberate failure to disclose an interest in order to obtain a financial or other pecuniary gain for oneself or another.

This policy identifies a series of measures designed to frustrate any attempted fraudulent or corrupt acts and the steps to be taken if such action occurs. The policy is presented in six areas as follows:

Section 2: Culture Section 3: Prevention Section 4: Deterrence

Section 5: Detection and Investigation Section 6: Awareness and Training

2. Culture

- 21 RPC promotes a culture of honesty, openness and fairness which supports its opposition to fraud and corruption. The prevention and detection of fraud and corruption and the protection of the public purse are the responsibility of everyone. The elected members and employees play an important role in creating and maintaining this culture. All are positively encouraged to raise concerns regarding fraud and corruption in the knowledge that such concerns will wherever possible be treated in confidence.
- 22 RPC will ensure that any allegations received will be taken seriously and investigated in an appropriate manner. Those who defraud RPC or who are corrupt or who instigate financial

malpractice will be dealt with firmly. There is however a need to ensure that any investigation process is not misused and, therefore, any abuse may, where appropriate, be dealt with as a disciplinary matter.

23 Where fraud and corruption has occurred due to a breakdown in systems or procedures, arrangements will be made to ensure that the appropriate improvements in systems of control are implemented to prevent a re-occurrence.

3. Prevention

3.1 Role of Elected Members

As elected representatives all Members of the Council have a duty on behalf of their electorate to protect RPC from all forms of fraud and corruption. This is reflected through the adoption of this Policy and compliance with the Code of Conduct for elected Members, RPC's Standing Orders and Financial Regulations and other relevant legislation.

When they take office elected Members are required to sign to the effect that they have read and understood the Code of Conduct. The Code requires elected Members, inter alia, to declare and register interests and to register receipt of gifts and hospitality. In addition, elected members are given the opportunity to attend periodic update sessions on matters of conduct and standards provided by the Borough Council's Monitoring Officer.

3.2 Role of Officers and Employees

3.2.1 Officers

Officers are responsible for the communication and implementation of this Policy in their respective work areas. They are also responsible for ensuring that employees are aware of RPC's Financial Regulations and Standing Orders and that the relevant requirements of each are being met in the day to day conduct of Council business.

Officers are expected to strive to create an environment in which employees feel able to approach them with any concerns they may have regarding suspected irregularities. All such concerns must be communicated to the Clerk.

Special arrangements will apply where employees are responsible for cash handling or are responsible for financial systems and systems that generate payments. Checks are carried out on a regular basis to ensure that proper procedures are being followed.

RPC recognises that a key preventative measure in dealing with fraud and corruption is ensuring that effective steps are taken at the recruitment stage to establish, as far as possible, the honesty and integrity of potential employees whether for permanent, temporary or casual posts. RPC has a recruitment procedure which contains appropriate safeguards on matters such as written references and verification of qualifications held. In addition, where appropriate, the relevant DBS checks will be undertaken for employees who will be required to work with children or vulnerable people.

3.2.2 Employees

The work of employees is governed by RPC's Standing Orders and Financial Regulations and other relevant policies, i.e. Health and Safety etc.

In addition to the above employees are responsible for ensuring that they follow the instructions given to them by their line manager particularly with regard to the safekeeping of RPC's assets.

Employees are expected to be aware of the possibility that fraud, corruption and theft may occur in the workplace. Concerns must be raised through use of RPC's Whistle Blowing Policy.

3.3 Conflicts of Interest

Elected Members must act as laid down in the Code of Conduct and employees must act in accordance with parish policies to ensure that they avoid situations where there is a potential for a conflict of interests. Effective role separation will ensure that decisions made are seen to be based on impartial advice and therefore avoid questions regarding improper disclosure of confidential information.

3.4 Role of Internal Audit

The Clerk is responsible for ensuring that there is an adequate and effective system of internal audit of RPC's accounting, financial and other systems in accordance with the provisions of the relevant Accounts and Audit Regulations. Internal audit plays a significant preventative role in ensuring that the relevant systems deter fraud and corruption and will work with management to identify the procedural changes necessary to prevent RPC from exposure to losses. Internal audit will also investigate cases of suspected irregularity or fraud.

35 Role of External Audit

The external auditor has a responsibility to review RPC's arrangements for preventing and detecting fraud and irregularities and arrangements designed to limit the opportunity for corrupt practices. This responsibility is satisfied by undertaking a number of specific reviews and tests of the adequacy of the relevant financial systems and other arrangements for the prevention and detection of fraud. The outcome of these reviews and tests are reported each year in the Annual Return which is presented to elected Members for approval at Council.

4. Deterrence

- 4.1 Fraud, corruption and theft are considered to be serious offences against RPC and employees will face a disciplinary investigation if there is an allegation that they have been involved in any of these activities. Where necessary, disciplinary action will be taken in addition to, or instead of, criminal proceedings depending on the circumstances of each individual case in a consistent manner.
- Similarly, any elected Member will face appropriate action under this policy if it is shown that they have been involved in fraud, corruption or theft against RPC or have otherwise acted illegally.

- 43 RPC will not seek to cover up cases of fraud and corruption but conversely will try to ensure that the results of any action taken, including prosecutions, are notified to the media.
- In all proven cases where financial loss has occurred and it is in the public's interest to do so RPC will seek to recover such loss and will give consideration to publicising the fact.
- All anti-fraud and corruption activities, including the adoption of this policy, will be publicised to make employees and the public aware of RPC's commitment to taking appropriate action on fraud and corruption when it occurs.

5. Detection and Investigation

- 5.1 Systems of internal control have been established together with Financial Regulations and Standing Orders to deter fraud and corruption. These are complemented by the work undertaken by Internal Audit in the review of systems and financial controls.
- 5.2 In addition, it is often the vigilance of employees and members of the public that aids detection. Employees are to be encouraged to raise their concerns without the fear of recrimination and RPC's Whistle Blowing procedure has been designed specifically to address this matter.
- 5.3 Frauds are, in some cases, discovered by chance or 'tip-off' and arrangements are in place to enable such information to be properly dealt with.
- 5.4 All suspected irregularities should be reported directly, or via an intermediary, to the Clerk.

 This is essential to ensure the consistent treatment of information regarding fraud and corruption and will facilitate a proper and thorough investigation.
- Investigations will normally be conducted by the Clerk and reported to the Chairman who will determine whether or not referral to the Police is appropriate. The outcome of all investigations where loss has been suffered will be reported to RPC's external auditor.
- Following the completion of an investigation, the circumstances will be assessed to determine the need for procedural and system changes to ensure that future risks are eliminated.
- 5.7 Where necessary, following the investigation, RPC's disciplinary procedures will be applied to any employee found to be guilty of improper behaviour.

6. Awareness and Training

- 6.3 RPC recognises that the sustained success of this policy and its general credibility will depend upon the effectiveness of its training programmes and awareness on the part of elected members and employees throughout the organisation.
- 6.4 Employees will be made aware of their responsibilities and the procedures to be followed for the safekeeping of RPC's assets and will be advised that failure to adhere to the specified procedures may lead to disciplinary action being taken.

7. Conclusion

RPC has in place a network of systems and procedures to assist in the prevention and detection of fraud and corruption. RPC is determined to ensure that these arrangements will keep pace with future developments in prevention and detection techniques regarding fraudulent or corrupt activity that may affect its operations.

The Clerk has day to day responsibility for the successful operation of the relevant systems supported by internal and external audit and will ensure that this policy is reviewed annually in order to be satisfied that RPC's exposure to potential fraud and corruption is minimised and that the results of this review are reported to the Council.

Adopted: 08 April 2019 Reviewed: 05 May 2021

Review date: May 2024

APPENDIX A

THE GENERAL PRINCIPLES

Selflessness

Members should only serve the public interest and should never improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person.

Honesty and Integrity

Members should not place themselves in situations where their honesty and integrity may be questioned, should not behave improperly and should on all occasions avoid the appearance of such behaviour.

Objectivity

Members should make decisions on merit, including when making appointments, awarding contracts or recommending individuals for rewards or benefits.

Accountability

Members should be accountable to the public for their actions and the manner in which they carry out their responsibilities and should co-operate fully and honestly with any scrutiny appropriate to their particular office.

Openness

Members should be as open as possible about their actions and those of their authority and should be prepared to give reasons for those actions.

Personal Judgement

Members should take account of the views of others, including their political groups, but should reach their own conclusions on the issues before them and act in accordance with those conclusions.

Respect for Others

Members should promote equality by not discriminating unlawfully against any person, and by treating people with respect, regardless of their race, age, religion, gender, sexual orientation or gender disability. They should respect the impartiality and integrity of the authority's statutory officers and its other employees.

Duty to Uphold the Law

Members should uphold the law and, on all occasions, act in accordance with the trust that the public is entitled to place in them.

Stewardship

Members should do whatever they are able to do to ensure that their authorities use their resources prudently and in accordance with the law.

Leadership

Members should promote and support these principles by leadership, and by example, and should act in a way that secures or preserves public confidence.

ROLLESTON ON DOVE PARISH COUNCIL MEMBERS AND OFFICERS SUBSISTENCE / MILEAGE POLICY 2021/22

1. Subsistence / Mileage Rates:

Matau Milaga Datas*	
Motor Mileage Rates*	
All cars and vans	45p per mile
	(first 10,000 miles)
	25p per mile
	(over 10,000 miles)
Motorbikes	24p per mile
Cycles	20p per mile
Subsistence Rates**	
Allowance Period	Maximum Payable
Breakfast (before 11 am)***	£5.00
Lunch (between 12 noon and 2 pm)	£7.50
Tea (between 3 pm and 6 pm)	£3.50
Evening Meal (after 7 pm)	£15.00
Conference allowance to cover out of pocket expenses (per 24 hour period)	£25.00
Public Transport Reimbursement of public transport fares (2 nd class or	r economy class only)

^{*}HMRC Approved Mileage Allowance Payments

2. Approved Duties

Members

- Attending conferences, e.g. National Association of Local Councils (NALC)
- Attending training courses
- Attending meetings at East Staffordshire Borough Council and Staffordshire County Council
- Representing the council at other events/meetings outside the parish boundary as approved by the parish council from time to time

Officers

- Mileage will be paid for all duties undertaken within and outside the parish boundary (with the exception of attendance at scheduled parish council meetings)
- Attendance at conferences, e.g. SLCC, NALC
- Attending approved training courses
- Attending meetings at East Staffordshire Borough Council and Staffordshire County Council
- Representing the Council at other events/meetings within and outside the parish boundary as appropriate to fulfilment of duties and/or as approved by the parish council from time to time

^{**}The subsistence rates quoted are for periods of four hours or more away from home and cannot be claimed where a meal has been provided free of charge by another authority or body. Receipts should be produced in respect of all claims wherever possible.

^{***}May only be claimed where an overnight stay is required and breakfast is not included in the accommodation charge.

Council Name: Rolleston on Dove Parish Council

Council Address: c/o 32 Hillcrest Rise, Burntwood WS7 4SH

Email Address: rollestonpc@outlook.com
Telephone number: 07400 28056107908 545412

Social Media and Electronic Communication Policy

The use of digital and social media and electronic communication enables Rolleston on Dove Parish Council (the Council) to interact in a way that improves the communications both within the Council and between the Council and the people, businesses and agencies it works with and serves.

The Council has a website, Facebook page and uses email to communicate. The Council will always try to use the most effective channel for its communications. Over time the Council may add to the channels of communication that it uses as it seeks to improve and expand the services it delivers. When these changes occur, this Policy will be updated to reflect the new arrangements.

The Council's Facebook page intends to provide information and updates regarding activities and opportunities within our Parish and promote our community positively.

Communications from the Council will meet the following criteria:

- Be civil, tasteful and relevant;
- Not contain content that is knowingly unlawful, libellous, harassing, defamatory, abusive, threatening, harmful, obscene, profane, sexually oriented or racially offensive;
- Not contain content knowingly copied from elsewhere, for which we do not own the copyright;
- Not contain any personal information.
- If it is official Council business it will be moderated by either the Chair/Vice Chair of the Council or the Clerk to the Council;
- Social media will not be used for the dissemination of any political advertising.

In order to ensure that all discussions on the Council page are productive, respectful and consistent with the Council's aims and objectives, we ask you to follow these guidelines:

- Be considerate and respectful of others. Vulgarity, threats or abuse of language will not be tolerated.
- Differing opinions and discussion of diverse ideas are encouraged, but personal attacks on anyone, including the Council members or staff, will not be permitted.
- Share freely and be generous with official Council posts but be aware of copyright laws; be accurate and give credit where credit is due.
- Stay on topic.
- Refrain from using the Council's Facebook page for commercial purposes or to advertise market or sell products.

The site is not monitored 24/7 and we will not always be able to reply individually to all messages or comments received. However, we will endeavour to ensure that any emerging themes or helpful suggestions are passed to the relevant people or authorities. Please do not include personal/private information in your social media posts to us.

Sending a message/post via Facebook will not be considered as contacting the Council for official purposes and we will not be obliged to monitor or respond to requests for information through these

channels. Instead, please make direct contact with the Council's Clerk and/or members of the Council by email.

We retain the right to remove comments or content that includes:

- Obscene or racist content
- Personal attacks, insults, or threatening language
- Potentially libellous statements.
- Plagiarised material; any material in violation of any laws, including copyright
- Private, personal information published without consent
- Information or links unrelated to the content of the forum
- Commercial promotions or spam
- Alleges a breach of a Council's policy or the law

The Council's response to any communication received not meeting the above criteria will be to either ignore, inform the sender of our policy or send a brief response as appropriate. This will be at the Council's discretion based on the message received, given our limited resources available. Any information posted on the Facebook page not in line with the above criteria will be removed as quickly as practically possible. Repeat offenders will be blocked from the Facebook page. The Council may post a statement that 'A post breaching the Council's Social Media Policy has been removed'. If the post alleges a breach of a Council's policy or the law the person who posted it will be asked to submit a formal complaint to the Council or report the matter to the Police as soon as possible to allow due process.

Parish Council Website

Where necessary, we may direct those contacting us to our website to see the required information or we may forward their question to one of our Councillors for consideration and response. We may not respond to every comment we receive particularly if we are experiencing a heavy workload.

The Council will not promote commercial organisations on its website or Facebook page, but it will promote village organisations and not for profit organisations where these are of interest to residents.

Parish Council email

The Clerk to the Council has their own council email address (<u>rollestonpc@outlook.com</u>). The email account is monitored during office hours, Monday to Friday, and we aim to reply to all questions sent as soon as we can. An 'out of office' message should be used when appropriate.

The Clerk is responsible for dealing with email received and passing on any relevant mail to members or external agencies for information and/or action. All communications on behalf of the Council will usually come from the Clerk, and/or otherwise will always be copied to the Clerk. All new emails requiring data to be passed on, will be followed up with a Data Consent form for completion before action is taken with that correspondence.

Individual Councillors are at liberty to communicate directly with parishioners in relation to their own personal views, if appropriate, copied to the Clerk. **NB**: Any emails copied to the Clerk become official and will be subject to The Freedom of Information Act.

These procedures will ensure that a complete and proper record of all correspondence is kept.

Do not forward personal information on to other people or groups outside of the Council, this includes names, addresses, email, IP addresses and cookie identifiers.

SMS (texting)

Members and the Clerk may use SMS as a convenient way to communicate at times. All are reminded that this policy also applies to such messages.

Video Conferencing e.g. Skype, Zoom

If this medium is used to communicate please note that this policy also applies to the use of video conferencing.

Internal communication and access to information within the Council

The Council is continually looking at ways to improve its working and the use of social media and electronic communications is a major factor in delivering improvement.

Councillors are expected to abide by the Code of Conduct and the Data Protection Act in all their work on behalf of the Council

As more and more information become available at the press of a button, it is vital that all information is treated sensitively and securely. Councillors are expected to maintain an awareness of the confidentiality of information that they have access to and not to share confidential information with anyone. Failure to properly observe confidentiality may be seen as a breach of the Council's Code of Conduct and will be dealt with through its prescribed procedures (at the extreme it may also involve a criminal investigation).

Members should also be careful only to cc essential recipients on emails i.e. to avoid use of the 'Reply to All' option if at all possible but of course copying in all who need to know and ensuring that email trails have been removed.

ROLLESTON ON DOVE PARISH COUNCIL 2021/22 MEETING SCHEDULE (DRAFT)

Description	Day	Date	Time	Venue
Annual Parish Council	Wednesday	05 May 2021	7.30pm	Zoom
s106 Working Group	Monday	07 June 2021	7.30pm	Zoom
Parish Council	Tuesday	22 June 2021	7.30pm	TBC
Contractor Review Meetings	Monday	12 July 2021	6.15pm and 6.45pm	
Parish Council	Monday	12 July 2021	7.30pm	ТВС
s106 Working Group	Monday	06 September 2021	7.30pm	Zoom
Parish Council	Monday	13 September 2021	7.30pm	ТВС
Parish Council	Monday	11 October 2021	7.30pm	TBC
s106 Working Group	Monday	01 November 2021	7.30pm	Zoom
Contractor Review Meetings	Monday	08 November 2021	6.15pm and 6.45pm	
Parish Council	Monday	08 November 2021	7.30pm	TBC
Parish Council	Monday	13 December 2021	7.30pm	ТВС
Parish Council	Monday	10 January 2022	7.30pm	ТВС
s106 Working Group	Tuesday	18 January 2022	7.30pm	Zoom
Parish Council	Monday	14 February 2022	7.30pm	TBC
s106 Working Group	Monday	07 March 2022	7.30pm	Zoom
Contractor Review Meetings	Monday	14 March 2022	6.15pm and 6.45pm	
Parish Council	Monday	14 March 2022	7.30pm	ТВС
Parish Council	Monday	11 April 2022	7.30pm	ТВС
Annual Parish Council	Monday	09 May 2022	7.30pm	ТВС